
***AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE*** 

Please contact Hermiston City Hall, 180 NE 2nd St, Hermiston, OR 97838 (Phone No. 541-567-5521) at least 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting time if you need an accommodation. 

TTY and TDD users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 or 711. 
 

 
HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 

180 NE 2nd Street – Hermiston, OR 97838 
Regular Meeting        November 28th, 2016 

A G E N D A 
 
 

 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER– 7:00 pm 

 
2. DECLARATION OF QUORUM 

 
3. FLAG SALUTE 

 
4. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS 

 
5. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS (Anyone wishing to bring anything before the council that is 

not on the agenda is asked to please do the following: 1. Limit discussion to not more than FIVE 
minutes; 2. State your name and address; 3. Direct your comments to the Mayor.) 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA    

A) Minutes of the November 14th, work session and regular City Council meeting. 
  

B) Minutes of the October 13th, Parks and Recreation Committee meeting. 
 

C) Minutes of the September 7th, and November 2nd, Airport Advisory Committee meeting. 
 

D) Liquor License Application - “Limited On-Premises Sales, New Outlet” for Holiday Inn Express & 
Suites located at 245 N. 1st Street. 
 

E) Announcement of standing committee vacancies for the unexpired portion of a: 

i. 1-year term beginning November 28th, 2016 and ending October 31st, 2017 
Parks and Recreation Committee- position #6. 

ii. 3-year term beginning January 1st, 2017 and ending December 31st, 2019 
Budget Committee- positions #1, #2, and #3. 
Recreation Projects Fund Advisory Committee- positions #1 and #2. 

iii. 4-year term beginning January 1st, 2017 and ending December 31st, 2020 
Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center Board- Combined (City/County) Motel Position. 
 



***AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE*** 

Please contact Hermiston City Hall, 180 NE 2nd St, Hermiston, OR 97838 (Phone No. 541-567-5521) at least 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting time if you need an accommodation. 

TTY and TDD users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 or 711. 
 

iv. Remainder of a 3-year term beginning December 28th, 2016 and ending June 30th, 2017 
Hispanic Advisory Committee- position #3. 

(Deadline for submitting applications is November 29th, 2016.) 
 

Action – Motion to approve consent agenda items.  Roll Call 
 

7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  
 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A) The City Council is holding a public hearing to consider: declaring surplus real property located at 

the City’s Well #6 property, approximately 950 feet west of Highway 395 S and 1,100 feet east of SE 
Kelli Blvd. The proposed use for the property is commercial retail development and the City 
proposes to sell this real property to George Dress for $6,565.  
1) Declaration of potential conflict of interest  
2) Hearing Guidelines 
3) Open Hearing 
4) Staff Report  
5) Public Testimony (people wishing to speak are asked to come to the microphone and state their 

name and mailing address) 
a. Proponents 
b. Opponents 

6) Close Hearing 
7) Finding of Fact 
 

9. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES 
A) Resolution 2045- Consider declaring surplus real property and agreeing to sell the property to 

Ranch and Home. 
Action- Motion to approve and lay upon the record and participate in the Ranch and Home replat 
application. Roll Call 
 

B) Resolution 2046- Consider waiving water, sewer, and electric charges and fees for the former 
Umatilla County Fairgrounds for six months, from December 1, 2016 to May 31, 2017. 
Action- Motion to approve and lay upon the record. Roll Call 
 

10. OTHER 
A) Consider selecting a name for the new intra-city fixed-route bus system. 

Action- Motion to approve one of the four potential names.  Roll Call 
 

B) October Financial Report. 
Action- Motion to approve. Roll Call 
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
A) City Committees and Liaison: Airport Advisory, Budget, Hispanic Advisory, Library Board, Parks & 

Recreation, Planning Commission, Recreation Projects Fund, Faith-Based Advisory, Community 
Enhancement, Public Safety, Public Infrastructure, Transit Planning, Festival Street Design. 



***AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE*** 

Please contact Hermiston City Hall, 180 NE 2nd St, Hermiston, OR 97838 (Phone No. 541-567-5521) at least 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting time if you need an accommodation. 

TTY and TDD users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 or 711. 
 

 
B) Mayor’s Report –  

 
C) Council Report –  

 
D) Manager’s Report- 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
(At City Hall unless otherwise specified) 

  
Nov 28  6:00 pm  Public Infrastructure Committee Meeting 
Nov 28  7:00 pm  City Council Meeting 
Dec 6  4:30 pm  Faith-Based Advisory Committee 
Dec 7  4:00pm  Airport Advisory Committee Meeting 
Dec 9  7:00 am  EOTEC Meeting (1705 E. Airport Rd) 
Dec 12  6:00 pm  City Council Work Session 
Dec 12  7:00 pm  City Council Meeting 
Dec 14  7:00 pm  Planning Commission Meeting 
Dec 19  7:00 pm  Hispanic Advisory Committee Meeting 
Dec 26    CHRISTMAS  HOLIDAY   CITY OFFICES CLOSED 
Dec 27  6:00 pm  City Council Work Session 
Dec 27  7:00 pm  City Council Meeting 
Dec 28  4:00 pm  Library Board Meeting (Library) 
Dec 30  7:00 am  EOTEC Meeting (1705 E. Airport Rd) 
 
 
   

 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Work Session November 14th, 2016 

Page 1 of 1 

Mayor Drotzmann called the work session meeting to order at 6:01 pm. Present were Councilors Myers, 
Gutierrez, Primmer, Hardin, and Davis. Councilors Kirwan, Beas-Fitzgerald, and Smith were excused. 
Staff members in attendance were City Manager Byron Smith, City Attorney Gary Luisi, Assistant City 
Manager Mark Morgan, Chief Edmiston, Clinton Spencer (arrived at 6:49), Bill Schmittle, Roy Bicknell 
(6:04pm), Larry Fetter (arrived 6:50pm), Amy Palmer (arrived at 6:35pm), and Lilly Alarcon-Strong. News 
media present were Jade Mc Dowell of the East Oregonian and Michael Kane of NE Oregon Now. 

Council Rules 
City Manager Smith stated while reviewing Chapter 32 of the City Charter; Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions, he noticed the two newest committees: Hispanic Advisory Committee and the Faith-Based 
Advisory Committee were lacking adoption and official documentation, as well as other committees 
were also lacking official documentation. City Manager Smith stated he felt that all committee guidelines 
should be reviewed, and if necessary, amended, and potentially have an ordinance prepared to finalize 
the changes made.  

City Manager Smith reviewed the following with the City Council: 
• Types of Advisory Boards, Committees, and Commissions
• Appointments, Terms, and Removal of Members
• Compliance of State Law Requirements
• Officers
• Quorums, Meetings, and Rules

And went over the establishments, membership qualifications and terms, powers and duties, and 
scheduled meetings for each of the City’s current Committees, Boards, and Commissions, to include: 

• Library Board
• Airport Advisory Committee
• Planning Commission
• Hispanic Advisory Committee
• Faith-Based Advisory Committee
• Community Enhancement Committee
• Budget Committee
• Parks and Recreation Committee
• Recreation Projects Fund Advisory Committee

The Council agreed to change wording in each “Meeting” section to allow the group to decide what day 
their meetings will be held; reduce the number of members in the Hispanic Advisory Committee and 
Faith-Based Advisory Committee from seven members to five members as it is/has been difficult to 
ensure a quorum is present; add the Hermiston Urban Renewal Agency to the list above; change the 
Community Enhancement Committee as an “As Needed” Committee; and etc. 

City Manager Smith stated he will work on the recommended changes and City Attorney Gary Luisi will 
prepare an ordinance for final adoption at a future City Council meeting.    

Mayor Drotzmann ended the work session at 6:58pm. The Councilors took a short break before the 
regular City Council meeting convened at 7:00 pm. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting   November 14th, 2016 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
Mayor Drotzmann called the regular meeting to order at 7:00pm. Present were Councilors Myers, 
Primmer, Gutierrez, Hardin, and Davis. Councilors Kirwan, Beas-Fitzgerald, and Smith were excused. 
Staff members in attendance were City Manager Smith, City Attorney Gary Luisi, Assistant City Manager 
Mark Morgan, Sergeant Kelly Parsons (exited at 7:35pm), Chief Edmiston, Clint Spencer, Bill Schmittle, 
Roy Bicknell, Larry Fetter, Amy Palmer, Judge Creasing, and Lilly Alarcon-Strong. News media present 
were Jade McDowell of the East Oregonian and Michael Cane of the East Oregonian. The pledge of 
allegiance was given.  
 
Recognition- I Love My City 
Mayor Drotzmann introduced Pastor Terry Haight from Hermiston Assembly of God Church and asked 
Pastor Haight to tell the Council about their message and project.  
 
Pastor Haight thanked the Council for inviting and recognizing the church and its message. Pastor Haight 
stated he has lived in Hermiston for the last 21 years. Their church has always provided community 
service and outreach; but this year, the congregation used  the concept of: I Love My City. 
 
Pastor Haight stated the congregation continues to serve the community by going acts of service, but 
has a clear message while doing so: I Love My City. Pastor Haight stated he has also been contacted by 
about 10 other churches from the area asking how they can be a part of this movement, which is a very 
wonderful thing. Pastor Haight stated the congregation is more than happy to help with items around 
the City; so if there are projects the City needs help with, just let them know.  
 
Mayor Drotzmann thanked Pastor Haight and his congregation for all the work they have done and do in 
our community. Mayor Drotzmann stated he is happy to see all the red I Love My City shirts in the 
community.    
 
Proclamation- Small Business Saturday 
Mayor Drotzmann read a Proclamation for Small Business Saturday encouraging the community to shop 
local on the Saturday after Thanksgiving and throughout the year. 
 
Citizen Input 
Virgina Garcia Rome 435 E. Sunset, invited the community, Council, and Mayor to participate in the MLK. 
Jr, walk and celebration on Monday, January 16th from 11:00am to 2:00pm. The walk will start at the 
Methodist Church and end at City Hall. 
 
Consent Items 
Councilor Primmer moved and Councilor Hardin seconded to approve all Consent Agenda items, to 
include:  

1. Minutes of the October 24th, work session and regular City Council meeting.  
2. Minutes of the May 25th and August 24th, Library Board meeting. 
3. Minutes of the September 14th, Planning Commission meeting. 
4. Minutes of the October 4th, Faith-Based Advisory Committee meeting. 
5. Minutes of the October 18th, and November 1st, Transit Committee meeting. 
6. Minutes of the October 24th, Public Safety Committee meeting. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting   November 14th, 2016 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
7. Liquor License Application - “Full On-Premises Sales, Change Ownership” for La Hacienda 

Mexican Restaurant located at 285 E. Main Street. 
8. Liquor License Application - “Limited On-Premises Sales, New Outlet” for Kobe Hibachi Sushi Inc. 

located at 1055 S. Highway 395 Ste 100. 
9. Announcement of standing committee vacancies for the unexpired portion of a: 

i. 1-year term beginning November 28th, 2016 and ending October 31st, 2017 
Parks and Recreation Committee- position #6. 

ii. 3-year term beginning January 1st, 2017 and ending December 31st, 2019 
Budget Committee- positions #1, #2, and #3. 
Recreation Projects Fund Advisory Committee- positions #1 and #2. 

iii. 4-year term beginning January 1st, 2017 and ending December 31st, 2020 
Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center Board- Combined (City/County) Motel Position. 

iv. Remainder of a 3-year term beginning December 28th, 2016 and ending June 30th, 2017 
Hispanic Advisory Committee- position #3. 

(Deadline for submitting applications is November 29th, 2016.) 

Motion carried unanimously.  
   
2016-2017 Supplemental Budget Hearing  
At 7:13 pm Mayor Drotzmann opened the hearing to consider a supplemental budget for the 2016-2017 
fiscal year.  
 
Finance Director Amy Palmer stated at times adjustments are needed in the budget as the budget is 
prepared well in advance. Resolution 2044, which will come before the council later in the meeting, 
supplements the City’s 2016-17 annual budget and authorizes additional expenditures in the Utility Fund 
and the Reserve Fund.   
The Utility Fund supplemental request is $1,420,200 for the following: 

• $1,390,100 for draining the sludge lagoon (originally budgeted in 2015-16 but unspent as of June 
30, 2016); 

• $9,880 for additional engineering costs to monitor the treatment plant; and 
• $22,220 for pump repair parts. 

The Reserve Fund request is $11,050 higher than anticipated to purchase pick-up trucks for the Sewer 
department. 
 
No one in the audience wished to comment and the hearing was closed at 7:18 pm. 
 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the original estimate to drain the lagoon was $1 million, and asked what 
happened to that estimate. 
 
Finance Director Amy Palmer stated there was more material that needed to be removed than what was 
originally estimated. 
 
 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting   November 14th, 2016 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Mayor Drotzmann stated 40% more material is a big miss for an estimate, and there were other options 
the Council could have taken. 
 
City Manager Smith stated this cost would have been incurred regardless as the lagoon needed to be 
emptied. The other options are what the Council can decide upon going forward. A recommendation 
should come before the Council within the next two months regarding this issue. 
 
Resolution No. 2042- Supersedes Resolution 2010 and re-adopts the financial policies for the City.  
Finance Director Amy Palmer gave a brief presentation stating it is required that financial policies be 
reviewed annually. No changes have been made or are being presented.  
 
Councilor Davis moved and Councilor Primmer seconded to approve Resolution No. 2042 and lay upon 
the record. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. 2043- Supersedes Resolution 2011 and re-adopts the City’s investment policy.   
Finance Director Amy Palmer gave a brief presentation stating it is required that investment policies be 
reviewed annually. No changes have been made or are being presented. The City has received an 
improved credit rating.  
 
Councilor Gutierrez moved and Councilor Hardin seconded to approve Resolution No. 2043 and lay upon 
the record. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. 2044- Supplement the 2016-2017 fiscal year budget (supplement #1). 
Finance Director Amy Palmer stated Resolution 2044 would allow the supplement in the 2016-2017 
fiscal budget as presented in the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Davis moved and Councilor Myers seconded to approve Resolution No. 2044 and lay upon the 
record. Motion carried unanimously.  
  
Public Transit Service Agreement 
Assistant City Manager Morgan presented the Council with a power point presentation regarding the 
proposed Public Transit Service Agreement. Mr. Morgan stated the intra-city fixed-route bus system 
provided by the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR) through their KAYAK 
Transit system would loop throughout the City six times per day. The target start date for the bus system 
is January 2nd, 2017; the bus would operate Monday thru Friday 9:00am to 4:00pm, and would be free to 
ride for everyone. This fixed-bus route would cost the City $250,000. but, because the City is working 
with CTUIR, and CTUIR has a tremendous amount of experience in the public transit system, CTUIR will 
be applying for various grants for the City that will go towards this program. If approved for these grants, 
the City should only expect to pay about $125,000.  
 
Mr. Morgan stated the City currently provides Taxi Tickets for seniors and people with disabilities with a 
cost to the City of $120,000 per year. This program started in the 1960’s when Hermiston population 
was about 4,000. Some of the challenges with the Taxi Ticket program are: 

• It is only for seniors and people with disabilities 
• There are no other type of public transit available in the City 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting   November 14th, 2016 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
• Taxi riders do not have an immediate response time for taxi rides, and at times, must wait up to 

an hour for a ride.  
 
Mr. Morgan stated although no public transit service is perfect, the City, CTUIR, and the Public Transit 
Committee have been working hard to come up with a better way to provide transportation services to 
the community and believe this comprehensive fixed-route bus stop system and contract is a big step in 
the right direction. 
 
Mr. Morgan stated the fixed-route bus system will also need a name. Currently, there is an online survey 
people can participate in that includes names that the Public Transportation Committee suggested, to 
include: 

• HART (Hermiston Area Regional Transit) 
• Watermelon Express 
• Bulldog Express      
• Hermiston Looper 

Mr. Morgan will be recommending a name, based on the online survey results, to the City Council at the 
next meeting.  
     
The Council agreed this is something the City has needed and thanked Assistant City Manager Morgan 
and JD Tovey from CTUIR, for going a good job at brining it all together. Councilor Primmer moved and 
Councilor Davis seconded to authorize City Manager Byron Smith to sign the Public Transit Service 
Agreement with CTUIR to provide a fixed-route intra-city bus route in Hermiston. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Portland Rose Festival 
City Manager Smith stated about a year ago, a representative from the Portland Rose Festival spoke 
with him and Mayor Drotzmann regarding a new program they are working on called “Mini Floats.” 
Communities around the State are being asked to participate in their Parade to help showcase and 
promote their cities. The float will need to be made of all organic materials, by community volunteers, 
and will need a driver and potential walkers for the parade. These mini floats are usually built on top of a 
golf cart or gator, and usually costs $1,000 to $5,000.  
 
City Manager Smith stated the City is looking for a community champion that would be willing to 
represent Hermiston and take on this project.  
 
Audience members stated there are many talented individuals and groups that could head up this 
project to include the High School Senior Project, etc. 
 
The Council agreed that this was a good opportunity to showcase Hermiston’s new brand and support 
this project with a budget of $5,000 and encouraged the community to participate. 
 
Committee Report 
Hispanic Advisory Committee: Councilor Gutierrez stated the Committee will meet on Monday, 
November 18th. 
 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting   November 14th, 2016 

Page 5 of 5 

Mayor Drotzmann stated the Hispanic Advisory Committee will be appointing a new chair at this 
meeting. 

Parks and Recreation Committee: Councilor Myers stated the Committee will meet on Thursday, 
November 17th. 

Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Drotzmann thanked all the Veterans for their service and congratulated the Council members on 
their reappointments to City Council. Mayor Drotzmann thanked Mark Gomolski for his participation in 
the election and stated he hopes he stays involved.  

Mayor Drotzmann stated he has also been participating in many local fundraisers and encourages the 
public to support their community and participate in the Tree Lighting Ceremony on Thursday, 
December 1st @ 6:00pm on NE 2nd St and Main St in front of City Hall.  

Council Report 
Councilor Hardin stated the Hermiston Christian Center is selling Christmas Wreaths. 

Councilor Gutierrez thanked Mark Gomolski for all his effort in the election campaign. 

City Managers Report 
City Manager Smith stated the City lead tested about 50 drinking faucets; both inside and outside of 
buildings to include: parks, etc, throughout the City. All came back negative for lead contamination. 

Mayor Drotzmann thanked City Manager Smith and city staff for being proactive on this issue. 

Adjournment 
There was no other business, and Mayor Drotzmann adjourned the regular meeting at 8:25pm. 

SIGNED: 
/s/Dave Drotzmann 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
/s/Lilly Alarcon-Strong 
ASSISTANT CITY RECORDER 



 
City of  Hermiston                                

Parks and Recreation Department     
  R e g u la r  M ee t in g   

 October 13, 2016                                                                5:27pm             
       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Also present: Carlisle Harrison, Mike Kay,  
 

 
 
Chairperson Cortaberria called the regular October 13th, 2016 meeting to order at 5:27pm.  Present were Board Members S. 
Williams, R. Severs, Carlisle Harrison, M. Kay, Councilors Myers and Primmer.   Stahlberg and Garcia were absent. 
 
July 2016 Minutes 
Board members S. Williams moved and Council Myers seconded that minutes of the regular scheduled meeting of September 
8th, 2016 be approved. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Public Attendance 
 Monica Jones 
 Barry Trapp  
Public Comment 

Chairperson Cortaberria asked for public comments. There were none.  
 

REPORTS 
Filling in for Director Fetter was Recreation and Pool Supervisor Dan Earp.  

 
A) HFAC SEASON REPORT 

Recreation/Pool Supervisor Earp reviewed and discussed the 2016 HFAC annual report.  
He stated since pool financial reports and data is not collected until after the aquatic center closes he was slightly concerned 
about what results would show since attendance started slower this year because of less favorable summer temperatures.   
Being mindful of this, Mr. Earp tried to reduce costs without compromising safety when he could.    Supervisor Earp was 
relieved to report to members the 2016 aquatic center numbers came in better than he anticipated. Total 2016 revenues were 
down compared to 2015 because weather conditions were much warmer and more suitable, however, the overall 2016 report 
showed the HFAC achieve its goal of 76% cost recovery for the season.  
 
Chairperson Cortaberria asked Mr. Earp if the season was shorter than usual. Mr. Earp stated the season was the same length 
of time as usual.  He indicated there was a misconception of the pool closing earlier because there was still a week of summer 
vacation before school started. He explained the pool opened the same weekend it always does, the first weekend after the 
school year ends and closed after operating on the approved eleven week budget.   Since the 2016-17 school started later this 
year that meant there was one week the pool was closed before school actually started.  Unfortunately, the supervisor said the 
pool calendar just didn’t match up with the school calendar schedule as it normally has in the past. 
 
Councilor Myers stated the schedule needs to be worked on for next year so this doesn’t happen again. She too heard several 
comments about the pool closing early as well.  
 
Mr. Earp stated he generally contacts the school district office to get the calendar date however, this year he didn’t get the 
start date until after the Activity Guide information had to be submitted. Chairperson Cortaberria indicated school district 
committee is probably a couple months out for confirming a 2017-18 school year.   
 
Board member Williams asked if there was a way that the aquatic center could open earlier and close later by adding two 
months to the normal operating schedule.  Mr. Earp explained the HFAC has an eleven week budget to work with. He 
indicated the majority of his lifeguard staff is either high school or college students making them unavailable until their 
school year ends. The other concerns the supervisor expressed was the feasibility of opening early and closing later when 
taking into consideration the added costs of chemicals, electricity, maintenance, and wages. Mr. Earp stated August generally 
is a slower month at the pool with lower attendance so expanding the season into September he felt might not be useful. 
Councilor Primmer suggested only offering Aquatic classes during the expanded months, limiting classes to specific times 
during the day.  

Staff: 
Larry Fetter, Director 

 Dan Earp, Recreation Supervisor 
 Gina Wicks, Department Assistant 

Attendance: 
 Briana Cortaberria 
     Jean Stahlberg 
 Carlisle Harrison 
 Steve Williams 

Lisa Garcia 
 Mike Kay 
 Ryan Severs 
 Jackie Myers, Council Liaison 
 Doug Primmer, Council Liaison 

 
 



Page 2 

Mr. Earp was asked to development a budget on how much it would cost to expand the facility’s usage by a couple months 
and report back. 

Council Primmer asked when the pools would be drained. Mr. Earp stated the person responsible for maintaining the pool has 
been working on other projects and upon finishing them he will be returning to the aquatic center to drain and close up the 
facility for the year. 

Updates of recent events and activities was discussed along with reminder of other upcoming special events to look forward 
to. 

Next meeting is scheduled for November 17th. 

Meeting adjourned at 5:52pm 



Hermiston Airport Advisory Committee Minutes 
Sept 7, 2016 
4:00 P.M. 

Members Present: Mike Martin, Ron Osgood, Ron Linn, Tim Beinert, and Dan Burns. 
City Representative: Mark Morgan. 
Airport caretakers: Susie Rawe 
Absent:  
Visitors:  
Minutes: Motion to approve May minutes by Ron Linn and second by Dan Burns. 
Motion approved. 
Airport Manager Report: Reviewed.  Susie reported that Fuel pump reader card has 
been giving users some difficulties. The vender has been contacted to find out what 
solutions can be taken to correct this problem. Additionally, the fuel delivery pump is 
very loud and could use some sound insulation.  

Financial report: Reviewed. On schedule with our budgeted calendar year. 

Old Business: 

New Business: 

• Hangar lease: The hangar lease agreement waiting list and sub-lease protocol
appears to be not being followed as originally implemented. Those individuals not in
compliance will be notified.

• Airport Consulting Firm: Precision Approach will be retained as our primary
consulting firm for the next phase of airport development design and master plan.

• Storage shed: A small storage shed will need to be purchased to store the small yard
maintenance items. Susie will obtain some cost estimates.

Meeting adjourned: 4:45pm 

Next meeting: Oct 5, 2016 at 4:00pm 

Respectfully submitted by:  

Ronald Osgood, Secretary 



Hermiston Airport Advisory Committee Minutes 
Nov 2, 2016 
4:00 P.M. 

Members Present: Ron Osgood, Ron Linn, Tim Beinert, and Dan Burns. 
City Representative: Mark Morgan. 
Airport caretakers: Susie Rawe 
Absent:  
Visitors: Precision Approach - Tracy May            
Century West Engineering – Matt Rogers and David Miller 
Minutes: None provided 
Airport Manager Report:  Susie reported the 100LL fuel pump hose is heavy and pilots 
are complaining that it potentially can cause damage to their aircraft. Tracy will research 
a solution to the problem. Additionally, a protective cap needs fabricated for the nozzle 
that is not made of metal to help prevent further aircraft paint damage. 

Susie is still waiting on bids for two small storage sheds. Susie would like to see 
one small shed near the fuel tank light pole for the air compressor, and the other shed on 
the west side of the FBO building. Susie also would like the City to possibly landscape a 
small area around the fuel farm. There are a few sprinklers that are needing repaired. 

Financial report: Reviewed. On schedule with our budgeted calendar year. 

Old Business: 

New Business:  

• Reil light: The Runway End Identifier Lights (REIL) need FAA approval before
certified. They will need to be flight checked, the FAA will publish the Mag Bar
change sometime in 2017 at which time the REIL lights will be finalized for usage.

• Advanced Ground Information Systems (AGIS): The Aerial work has been
completed. During the winter and spring months’ survey work will be completed,
formatted, and uploaded to the FAA website.

• Critical Oregon Airport Relief grant (COAR): Application has been made for
grant funds. 

• Airport Master Plan: Century West Engineering introduced themselves to the
committee and discussed the process of putting together an airport master plan and
things to take into consideration when looking ahead at future planning.

Meeting adjourned: 5:05pm 

Next meeting: Dec 7, 2016 at 4:00pm 

Respectfully submitted by:  

Ronald Osgood, Secretary 







CITY OF HERMISTON 

 

 

 

Subject 

Dress Brothers Partnership (Ranch and Home) has made an offer to the city to purchase a 
portion of the Well #6 property for retail development. 

Summary and Background 

Staff have been working on the potential development of a new Ranch and Home store off 
Highway 395 in the southern portion of the city.  In order to accommodate the best location for 
the 100,000 square foot retail building while providing sufficient space for parking and future 
additional retail opportunities, Ranch and Home has approached the city with an offer to 
purchase 0.43 acres of the existing Well #6 site directly north of the Wal-Mart Distribution 
Center (see attached letter from Ranch and Home).  This portion of the well is undeveloped 
with any city structures, is not needed for future water system development, and lies outside 
the existing fenced boundary of the city’s lot.  An aerial photo is attached displaying the existing 
property configuration and proposed surplus area.  Additionally, a copy of the proposed Ranch 
and Home site plan is attached which details how the property is proposed to be used in 
relation to the overall development plan. 

Ranch and Home’s offer to purchase the property proposes a sale price of $15,267 per acre.  
The offered price per acre is identical to the price paid by Ranch and Home for 6.55 acres 
purchased from the Port of Umatilla immediately east of the city lot in 2015.  Since the area 
requested for sale is less than an acre, the price will be prorated down to $6,565 for 0.43 acres. 

In order to consider sale of the property, the city council must declare this portion of the well 
site to be surplus.  The state of Oregon establishes the rules and procedures for declaring 
property surplus in ORS 221.725.  Following the conclusion of a public hearing at the November 
28 meeting, the city will have followed all of the procedures for declaring a property as surplus. 

• A notice of hearing was published in the Hermiston Herald on November 23, no more 
than seven days and no less than five days in advance of the hearing.   

• The notice stated the time and place for the hearing, described the property proposed 
for sale, the proposed use of the property, and the city’s reason for proposing sale. 

• A public hearing was held on the proposed sale of the property. 
• Evidence of the market value of the property was provided through the provision of the 

sale price of similarly zoned, publicly owned land immediately adjacent to this site 
within the last year. 

Staff Report 
For the Meeting of November 28, 2016 

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016 – 

SUBJECT: Surplus Property 
Designation – Well 6 



CITY OF HERMISTON 

If the city council agrees that the property should be declared surplus and sold to Ranch and 
Home, Ranch and Home will submit an application to replat this property and add the 0.43 
surplus acres to the existing property owned by Ranch and Home immediately to the east.  The 
city will retain the balance of the property. 

Fiscal Information 

The sale of the property will result in the payment of $6,565 in cash to the city of Hermiston to 
be used for general fund purposes.  Additionally, the 0.43 acres will be added to the tax rolls for 
the city of Hermiston and taxed as commercial property.  Currently, property owned by the city 
is not taxed. 
 

Alternatives and Recommendation 

The city council may choose to: 

1. Adopt Resolution 2045 declaring this portion of the property as surplus and agreeing to 
sell the property to Ranch and Home. 

2. Reject Resolution 2045 and continue to maintain this property in city ownership. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the council choose option 1 and declare the property surplus and direct 
Ranch and Home to proceed with the replat joining this vacant land to the Ranch and Home 
site. 

Requested Action/Motion 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2045 

Motion to participate in the Ranch and Home replat application 

 

Reviewed by: 

 

Department Head – Clinton Spencer, City Planner   City Manager Approval 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO 2045 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CITY OWNED PROPERTY AS SURPLUS 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermiston owns 1.71 acres, described as Lot 4, Block 1, Hermiston Port 
– Unit One, in Section 24 and utilizes the site for municipal well and water storage purposes, and

WHEREAS, the council has established a policy of disposal to eliminate the holding of 
unnecessary parcels and to promote development, and 

WHEREAS, the city has received an offer from George Dress to purchase a portion of Lot 4, 
Block 1, Hermiston Port – Unit One, said portion containing 0.43 acres and being described as: 

That portion of Lot 4, Block 1, Hermiston Port - Unit One, recorded in book 13 of town plats at 
page 11, lying in the northwest quarter of Section 24, Township 4 North, Range 28 East, W.M., 
City of Hermiston, and described as follows: 

Beginning at the northeast corner of said lot, thence south 00˚ 03’ 25” west along the easterly line 
of said lot 185.00 feet; thence north 89˚ 38’ 01” west 102.00 feet; thence north 00˚ 04’ 34” west 
185 feet to the northwest corner of said lot; thence south 89˚ 38’ 01” east along the northerly line 
of said lot 102.43 feet to said point of beginning,  

The offer to purchase is $6,565 for 0.43 acres (equivalent to $15,267 per acre), and 

WHEREAS, the Port of Umatilla sold property immediately adjacent to the city property, 
described as Lot 1, Block 1, Hermiston Port – Unit One, in 2015 for $15,267 per acre, and 

WHEREAS, the city council held a public hearing on November 28, 2016 to consider the 
purchase request and declaration of surplus property,  NOW THEREFORE 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED the above described property is hereby declared surplus and the 
city council declares it a matter of necessity that the land be sold to George Dress for a purchase price of 
$6,564.  The purchaser shall be responsible for all costs including surveying, platting, and filing fees 
associated with removing the surplus area from Lot 4 Block 1 and joining it to Lot 1, Block 1. 

Dated this 28th day of November 2016. CITY OF HERMISTON 

By: ________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

By:   _____________________________ 
ASSISTANT CITY RECORDER 



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN,
IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Note: Lot lines do not match fence line on
photo due to differences in map projections.

City of Hermiston - Well Site #6

0 60 12030
Feet I

Surplus Area
0.43 Acres





S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SP03
SITE PLAN

A1

0'

1" = 50'

25' 50' 100' 150'

NORTH

2 BUSINESS DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG

CALL 811

U

S

 

3

9

5

U

S

 

3

9

5

VICINITY MAP

K
E

L
L
I
 
B

L
V

D

FEEDVILLE RD

3B

1A

\
1

5
0

1
5

-
R

a
n

c
h

 
a

n
d

 
H

o
m

e
 
H

e
r
m

i
s
t
o

n
\
D

W
G

\
1

5
0

1
5

X
C

0
1

.
d

w
g

 
-
 
 
N

o
v
 
2

3
,
2

0
1

6
 
-
 
0

9
:
4

2
a

m
 
-
 
s
t
o

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

H
E

R
M

I
S

T
O

N
 
R

A
N

C
H

 
A

N
D

 
H

O
M

E

5453 RIDGELINE DR.

SUITE 120

KENNEWICK, WA 99338

1-509-222-0959

www.knutzenengineering.com

EXPIRATION DATE:  06/30/2017

83108PE

OREGON

E

N G I N E E

R

JULY 14 , 2 009PA

UL
T . KNUTZEN

RE
G

IS

TERED PROFESSIONAL

PRELIMINARY

BLDG



City of Hermiston 

Subject 
Waiving Utility fees and charges on the former Umatilla County Fairgrounds for six 
months. 

Summary and Background 
Many groups have been working towards the formation and construction of the Eastern 
Oregon Trade and Event Center (EOTEC). Construction is under way and the former 
fairgrounds are ready to be transferred to the Hermiston School District.  

Due to the timing of construction of the new fairgrounds and the demolition of portions 
of the old fairgrounds there are a number of events that need a temporary home. The 
College Rodeo, the High School Rodeo and other events have been held in Hermiston 
for many years and want to continue at the new EOTEC facilities. 

The Hermiston School District takes possession of the old fairgrounds on January 1, 
2017. In order to assist in keeping these events in Hermiston, different methods have 
been explored to work together in hosting these events at the old fairgrounds until the 
new facilities are completed at EOTEC.  

Fiscal Information 
Because of the timing of this request being December through May, there is minimal 
usage of any of the utility facilities on the old fairgrounds. This waiver would have 
minimal financial impact to either the utility fund or the HES fund. 

Alternatives and Recommendation 
Although there will be a loss of some revenue for this time period, this is a good 
partnership in preserving a number of good events that bring people to Hermiston. 

Recommendation 
I recommend approval of the resolution to waive the utility fees. 

Requested Action/Motion 
Approval of Resolution 2046 to waive utility fees for the old Umatilla County 
Fairgrounds. 

City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

For Meeting of November 28, 2016

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016- 

SUBJECT: Old 
Fairgrounds Fee 
Waivers–Res. 2046



RESOLUTION NO. 2046 

A RESOLUTION WAIVING WATER/SEWER CHARGES AND FEES AND ELECTRIC CHARGES AND FEES 
FOR THE FORMER UMATILLA COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS FROM DECEMBER 1, 2016 UNTIL MAY 31, 2017. 

WHEREAS,  the Umatilla County Fairgrounds were purchased by the Hermiston School District; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Fairgounds property will formally change ownership on January 1, 2017; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Hermiston and Umatilla County are partners in creating and constructing 
the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center (EOTEC); and 

WHEREAS, there are a number of events that have been held in Hermiston (College Rodeo, High 
School Rodeo and various Horse sales) and would like to continue in Hermiston; and 

WHEREAS, the Hermiston School District is going to host these events for one year in order to 
assist EOTEC in keeping these events in Hermiston. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Hermiston waives water/sewer charges and fees and 
electric charges and fees for the former Umatilla County Fairgounds from December 1, 2016 until May 
31, 2017. 

PASSED by the Common Council this 28th day of November, 2016. 
SIGNED by the Mayor this 28th day of November, 2016. 

______________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
ASSISTANT CITY RECORDER 



City of Hermiston 

Subject 
The new bus route, recently approved by City Council, needs an official name to be 
included on various informational and promotional materials, as well as grant 
applications. 

Summary and Background 
The Public Transit Advisory Committee recommended several potential names for the 
new bus route.  These names were published in multiple news releases, and on the 
City’s Facebook page, along with links to an online survey for feedback about the route 
name.  Below is the summary of the online survey responses. 

“HART” Hermiston Area Regional Transit: 51.3% 
Watermelon Express: 20.7% 
Bulldog Express:  18.1% 
Hermiston Looper:  9.9% 

Financial Information 
No financial impact. 

Alternatives and Recommendation 
Alternatives 

1. Motion to approve one of the four potential names.
2. Motion to table the decision.

Recommendation 
Staff recommends selection of a name as soon as possible, so that informational and 
promotional materials can be developed in order to ensure community usage of the 
system. 

Requested Action/Motion 
Motion to approve one of the four potential names. 

Department Head- Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager 

City Manager Approval- Byron D. Smith, City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

For Meeting of Nov. 28, 2016

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016- 

SUBJECT:  
Name New Bus 
Route 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance Department 
October 2016 
(Unaudited) 

 

 

Includes the Hermiston Urban Renewal Agency 

 

Monthly Financial Report 



Page 2 

Through October 31, 2016

by Category (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Rev

Projected 

Rev YTD

Actual Rev 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Prop Taxes 29$        -$         -$         -$       0%

Loan Proceeds 100        -           -           -         0%

Cash Fwd 74          -           -           -         0%

Total 203$      -$         -$         -$       0%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected revenue YTD.

Through October 31, 2016

by Character (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual Exp 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Façade Grants 50$        17$          -$         17$        100.0%

Festiva l  St 125        42            -           42          98%

NonDept 14          5              -           5            94%

Res  for Fut Exp 14          -           -           -         0%

Total 203$      62$          -$         62$        100%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected expenditures YTD.

Expenditures

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
Hermiston Urban Renewal Agency (HURA)

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

Resources

 $0

 $1

 $1

Prop Taxes Loan
Proceeds

Cash Fwd

Projected Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD

 $0

 $10

 $20

 $30

 $40

 $50

Façade
Grants

Festival St NonDept

Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency conducted an open house for the festival street in October.  The invoice for 
the consultant related costs has not yet been received.  No other activity has occurred so far this year for 
the district. 



Page 3 

Through October 31, 2016

All Resources (in $1,000)

Annual Proj 

Rev

Proj Rev 

YTD

Actual Rev 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% 

Var

Jul 408$           408$        458$        50$        12%

Aug 405 405$        326$        (79) (20%)

Sep 308 308$        362$        54 17%

Oct 363 363$        314$        (49) (13%)

Nov 4,475

Dec 1,815

Jan 340

Feb 499

Mar 317

Apr 484

May 453

Jun 522

Total 10,387        1,483       1,460       (24) (2%)

Cash Fwd 4,800          -           -           -        0%

Total 15,187$      1,483$     1,460$     (24) (2%)

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

 

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

General Fund Resources

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500

$5,000

Annual Proj Rev Actual Rev YTD

 
 

 
 

Through October 31, 2016

by Category (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Rev

Proj Rev 

YTD

Actual 

Rev YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Prop Taxes 5,202$   150$        105$      (44)$       (30%)

Lic 851        284          309        26          9%

Fines 570        196          159        (36)         (19%)

Interest Rev 50          19            14          (5)           (27%)

Frm Oth Agen 499        166          196        30          18%

Svc Chgs 1,424     492          496        4            1%

Other Rev 1,791     177          179        2            1%

Cash Fwd 4,800     -           -        -         0%

Total 15,187$ 1,483$     1,460$   (24)$       (2%)

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected revenue YTD.

General Fund Revenue

 $0

 $100

 $200

 $300

 $400

 $500

Prop Taxes Fines Frm Oth
Agen

Other Rev

Proj Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD

 
 
  

Estimated General Fund revenues for the 2016-17 fiscal year are $10.4 million.  Projected revenues through 
October $24,000 higher than actual revenues at $1.5 million, a variance of 2%.  Property taxes, Fines and Interest 
Earnings are collectively under projections by $85,000 offset by a positive variance of $62,000 collectively in 
Licenses, receipts From Other Agencies, Service Charges and Other Revenue.  

 



Page 4 

General Fund Expenditures

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016
 

Through October 31, 2016

All Requirements (in $1,000)

Annual Proj 

Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual Exp 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% 

Var

Jly 964$           964$        775$        189$      20%

Aug 1,045$        1,045$     969$        76$        7%

Sep 1,022$        1,022$     914$        108$      11%

Oct 736$           736$        724$        12$        2%

Nov 775$           

Dec 1,680$        

Jan 882$           

Feb 684$           

Mar 815$           

Apr 889$           

May 861$           

Jun 1,119$        

Total 11,472 3,767 3,382 385 10%

Unapp 3,715 -           -           -        0%

Total 15,187$      3,767$     3,382$     385$      10%

General Fund Expenditure Summary

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

Jly Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Annual Proj Exp Actual Exp YTD

 
 
 

 

Through October 31, 2016

by Consolidated Department (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual 

Exp YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Admin 564$      195 195 0 0%

Law 497 163 156 7 4%

Pub Svc 3,139 1,209 999 209 17%

Pub Safe 4,517 1,519 1,403 117 8%

NonDept 6,470 681 629 52 8%

Unapp -         -           -        -         0%

Total 15,187$ 3,767$     3,382$   385$      10%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected expenditures YTD.

General Fund Expenditures

 $0

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

Admin Law Pub Svc Pub Safe NonDept

Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

 

Projected General Fund expenditures through October were $3.8 million and actual expenditures 
were $3.4 million, a favorable variance of $385,000.  Public Services and Public Safety continue to have 
the highest savings at $209,000 and $117,000 respectively. 

 



Page 5 

by Department

Annual Projected 

Exp Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% Var Fav/

(Unfav)

City Counci l 45,719 26,953 28,452 (1,499) (6%)

City Manager/Planning 438,624 142,625 142,234 391 0%

Finance 79,295 25,760 24,196 1,564 6%

   Total Admin & Finance 563,638 195,338 194,882 456 0%

Legal 83,700 27,689 23,471 4,218 0%

Court 413,186 135,171 132,798 2,373 2%

   Total Dept of Law 496,886 162,860 156,269 6,591 4%

Transportation 248,300 44,231 41,956 2,275 5%

Airport 252,450 113,609 78,088 35,521 31%

Bldg Inspection 355,617 117,336 115,837 1,499 1%

Parks 490,819 181,992 171,835 10,157 6%

Parks/Uti l i ty Landscaping 39,475 13,158 9,614 3,544 27%

Pool 433,333 277,196 196,993 80,203 29%

Municipal  Bui ldings 18,500 7,678 7,171 507 7%

Library 734,775 244,965 193,530 51,435 21%

Recreation 565,808 208,660 184,369 24,291 12%

   Total Public Services 3,139,077 1,208,826 999,393 209,433 17%

Publ ic Safety Center 82,000 29,639 20,929 8,710 29%

Pol ice Operations 4,434,616 1,489,662 1,381,626 108,036 7%

   Total Public Safety 4,516,616 1,519,301 1,402,555 116,746 8%

Non-Departmental 2,756,190 680,981 628,996 51,985 8%

Unappropriated 3,714,718 0 0 0 0%

 Total Non-Dept 6,470,908 680,981 628,996 51,985 8%

Total 15,187,125 3,767,305 3,382,095 385,210 10%

General Fund Expenditures

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
General Fund Expenditure Detail

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

Within the Public Services category, the Pool had the greatest amount of savings dollar-wise at $80,000. 
followed by the Library at $51,000 and the Airport at $35,500.  Savings in the Pool are due to a 
combination of lower than expected labor costs and slower spending on materials and services than 
previous years.  Library savings are in personnel costs and unspent budget for building repairs and 
maintenance and other contractual services.  Police Operations had savings of $108,000 largely due to 
unspent budget in travel and training, nuisance abatement and motor vehicle fuel and oil. 



Page 6 

Through October 31, 2016

(in $1,000)

Begin 

Fund Bal Rev Exp

End Fund 

Bal

Proj End 

Fund Bal

July 4,244$   458$    (775)$    3,927$   3,658$   

Aug 3,927     326$    (969)$    3,283$   3,024$   

Sep 3,283     362$    (914)$    2,731$   2,298$   

Oct 2,731     314$    (724)$    2,321$   1,913$   

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Minimum Reserve = $1,720,861 Total 4,244$   1,460$ (3,382)$ 2,321$   1,913$   

Ending Fund Balance

General Fund

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
Fund Balance - General Fund 

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

 $0

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

 $4,000

End Fund Bal Proj End Fund Bal Min Reserve

Min

Res

 

 

  

As of the end of October the fund balance in the General Fund was $2.3 million, compared to a projected 
fund balance of $1.9 million.   



Page 7 

Resources & Requirements

Special Revenue Funds

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report
Special Revenue  Funds Report

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

 

2016-17 

Annual Budget Actual YTD

Remaining 

Budget

Bonded Debt Fund

Resources 699,925          195,685      504,240      

Expenditures 510,275          427,162      83,113        

Unappropriated Ba lance 189,650          N/A N/A

Transient Room Tax (TRT)

Resources 830,460          272,766      557,694      

Expenditures 767,860          157,443      610,417      

Unappropriated Ba lance 62,600            N/A N/A

Reserve Fund

Resources 6,330,090       655,198      5,674,892   

Expenditures 5,337,317       403,200      4,934,117   

Unappropriated Ba lance 992,773          N/A N/A

Municipal Court Special Revenue

Resources 281,900          71,895        210,005      

Expenditures 260,100          74,399        185,701      

Unappropriated Ba lance 21,800            N/A N/A

Miscellaneous Special Revenue

Resources 35,000            7,442          27,558        

Expenditures 35,000            9,973          25,027        

Unappropriated Ba lance -                  N/A N/A

Conference Center

Resources 237,525          55,862        181,663      

Expenditures 187,525          48,709        138,816      

Unappropriated Ba lance 50,000            N/A N/A

Christmas Express Special Revenue

Resources 34,690            19,691        14,999        

Expenditures 34,690            -              34,690        

Unappropriated Ba lance -                  N/A N/A

Law Enforcemnent Special Revenue

Resources 78,880            10,102        68,778        

Expenditures 65,880            27,646        38,234        

Unappropriated Ba lance 13,000            N/A N/A

Library Special Revenue

Resources 57,200            7,177          50,023        

Expenditures 44,000            1,203          42,797        

Unappropriated Ba lance 13,200            N/A N/A  

 

 

Beginning with the 2016-17 

fiscal year the City began 

distinguishing within the funds 

some part of ending fund 

balance as contingency and 

some as reserved for future 

expenditure.  The contingency 

is included in appropriations 

while the reserve for future 

expenditures is 

unappropriated. 

 

 

 

The City uses multiple Special 

Revenue funds to account for 

revenues that are restricted to 

expenditure for particular 

purposes.  They include funds 

for debt service, economic 

development, parks and 

recreation, capital projects, 

and grants. 

Since these funds are not 

operational in nature and are 

used for specific purposes from 

year-to-year, their 

expenditures do not typically 

follow a predictable pattern so 

budget variances are not 

calculated for them. 

 



Page 8 

 

Resources  & Expenditures

2016-17 

Annual Budget Projected YTD Actual YTD

Variance 

Fav/(Unfav) % Variance

Street Fund

Resources 1,730,474       337,288             362,843              25,555            8%

Expenditures 1,184,879       403,393             381,907 21,486 5%

Contingency/Unapp Balance 545,595          N/A N/A N/A N/A

Utility Fund

Resources 7,310,820       2,306,582          2,188,788           (117,794) (5%)

Expenditures 6,535,820       2,112,896          3,382,292 (1,269,396) (60%)

Contingency/Unapp Balance 775,000          N/A N/A N/A N/A

HES Fund

Resources 11,970,249     3,265,308          2,877,884           (387,424) (12%)

Expenditures 9,151,094       3,235,866          3,074,660 161,206 5%

Contingency/Unapp Balance 2,819,155       N/A N/A N/A N/A

Regional Water Fund

Resources 1,317,060       266,246             315,127              48,881            18%

Expenditures 723,530          241,177             223,678 17,499 7%

Contingency/Unapp Balance 593,530          N/A N/A N/A N/A

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report

Utility and Street Funds Report

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

Utility and Street Funds Report

 
 
 

Revenues in the Street fund are $25,000 above projections through October, an 8% favorable variance.  
Expenditures are $22,000 lower than expected reflecting savings in both labor and materials and services 
providing an overall favorable variance of approximately $47,000. 

Revenues in the Utility Fund are under projections mainly due to Water Revenues coming in less than expected.   
Expenditures are about $1.3 million over projections.  As previously reported this is due to costs to drain the 
sludge lagoon.  Council recently approved a budget supplement which is expected to eliminate this variance. 

HES revenues continue to come in lower than estimates.  Through October they are down $387,000 likely due 
to temperature fluctuations between last year and this year. The unfavorable revenue variance is offset by a 
favorable expenditure of $161,000 for a net variance of  $226,000. 

Regional Water revenues are nearly $49,000 higher than expected and expenditures are $17,500 lower than 
projected.



                                                                                                                       Page 9 

 

Beginning 

Reserve

Ending

Reserve

%

Ending

Reserve

Minimum 

Reserve 

Requirement Difference

Utility Fund 3,445,748       1,065,208          16.3% 805,786          259,422      

HES Fund 3,531,269       3,673,488          40.1% 1,128,217       2,545,271   

Total 6,977,017       4,738,696          - 1,934,003       2,804,693   

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

Reserve Balances

Utility and HES Funds Report

Utility and HES Funds Report

 

 

The reserve in the Utility Fund dropped from $1.2 million last month to $1.1 million in October.  The utility 

has paid out almost all of the costs to drain the lagoon so we do not expect to see the reserves drop 

significantly from this point on.  Currently the reserve is $259,400 above the minimum. The HES Fund is $2.5 

million over the minimum reserve of $1.1 million.  The combined total reserve is approximately $4.7 million.   

 

  



Page 10 

2016-2017

Budget

YTD 

Expenditures

LTD

Budget

LTD 

Expenditures

% 

Complete

Airport GIS Mapping Project -$                    -$                 -$                -$                0%

Senior Center 2,706,300          34,909             2,823,360      143,213         0%

11th & Elm 813,710             15,000             813,710         15,000            0%

West Highland Trail 130,000             -                    130,000         -                  0%

Total 3,650,010$        49,909$           3,767,070$    158,213$       

2016-17 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

Capital Projects Report

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

Capital Projects

 

 

Airport Improvements 

Construction on the Airport improvements has been completed and the focus will now be on completing a GIS 

mapping of all facilities at the Airport which will be loaded into the FAA’s system.  This work was added as part of 

the City’s existing grant to relocate the parallel taxiway and is a requirement of airports when their Master Plans 

are updated.  The City is scheduled to update the Master Plan in 2017 for an estimated $300,000.  If this work had 

not been added to the City’s existing grant, the Master Plan Update would have been delayed by a year in order 

to build up another year’s worth of $150,000 NPE funding.  The total project cost for the AGIS project alone is 

$154,600. 

Senior Center 

In January 2015 the City was awarded a $2 million Oregon Community Development Block Grant through the 
Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority for construction of a new Senior Center. The City must provide a cash 
contribution of $73,242 and complete the project by January 29, 2018. In June 2016, City Council added $750,000 
to the project for a 3,800 sf basement and elevator.  Life-to-date the City has incurred $143,000 on design, survey 
and appraisal costs.  The plan review will be completed in November and awarded in December 2016. 

October Update: Nothing new to report since last month. 

Traffic Control – 11th & Elm 

This project is a $1.6M ODOT-led project to install a full traffic signal at the intersection of Elm Avenue and NW 
11th as well as a left-turn lane for southbound traffic into Good Shepherd Medical Center’s entrance on NW 11th.  
It will also complete a bike/pedestrian crossing with flashing beacon at GSMC’s NW 11th entrance where the 
Oxbow Trail currently terminates.  ODOT is leading the design and construction.  Construction is expected to begin 
in spring 2017. $15,000 has been expended to date on right of way costs. 

October Update: Nothing new to report since last month. 

West Highland Trail 

This project is to create a bike lane and/or separated trail on the south side of West Highland Avenue between SW 

11th Street and Riverfront Park.  A bike lane will be striped where there are existing sidewalks on the south side 

of West Highland and a separated path will be built where there are no existing curbs or sidewalks.  A portion of 

the project will include creating a left turn pocket at Gotta Stop/SW 14th Place.  The project is funded by a grant 

from ODOT. 

There have been no expenditures on the project in the fiscal year 2016-17. 

October Update: Nothing new to report since last month. 



Page 11 

by Type

Cusip No. Par Value Principal Cost Market Value Issuer

Rating

Moody's/S&P

Days to 

Maturity

Callable 

Y/N

Yield to 

Worst

Call

Yield to 

Maturity

(YTM)

3135G0G31 2,000,000$      1,993,600$     1,995,398$      FNMA Aaa/AA+ 820             Y 1.28 1.28

76116FAA5 2,062,000$      1,999,998$     1,988,799$      REFCORP Aaa/AA+ 1,079          N 0.95 0.95

3133EGLA1 1,000,000$      1,001,020$     992,111$          FFCB Aaa/AA+ 1,169          Y 1.07 1.14

3137EADN6 1,000,000$      978,757$         999,678$          FHLMC Aaa/AA+ 438             N 1.29 1.29

3135G0GY3 1,000,000$      1,013,901$     1,002,160$      FNMA Aaa/AA+ 91 N 0.78 0.78

US Agencies 7,062,000$      6,987,276$     6,978,146$    --- --- --- --- --- ---

LGIP 6,520,010$      6,520,010$     6,520,010$      Varies ---/AA 1 N 0.88 0.88

LGIP 6,520,010$      6,520,010$     6,520,010$    --- --- --- --- --- ---

TOTAL 13,582,010$  13,507,286$   13,498,156$  --- --- --- --- --- ---

Investment Report

2016-2017 Monthly Financial Report

City of Hermiston, Oregon

Investments

For the Month Ending October 31, 2016

The City of Hermiston has established certain policies for its investments.  In order to limit credit and interest 

rate risk, investments are diversified by security type, maturity, issuer, and call provisions.  At least 25% of 

funds available for investing will be invested in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), with a qualified 

depository institution, or investments maturing in less than 90 days.  50% or more of the portfolio will be 

invested in securities maturing in less than three years.  The maximum average maturity for the portfolio shall 

be 3 years and the maximum maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall be 5 years.  No more than 

75% of the portfolio may be callable.  The minimum weighted average credit rating of the portfolio’s 

investments shall be Aa/AA by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s respectively.  The breakdown of the City’s 

portfolio is shown below. 

Maturity

Par

Value

% of Total 

Portfolio

< 90 Days 6,520,010$      48.0%

90 Days - 3 Yrs 4,000,000$      29.5%

3 - 5 Yrs 3,062,000$      22.5%

13,582,010$    100.0%

Type of Inv

Par

Value

% of Total 

Portfolio

US Agency 7,062,000$      52.0%

Other -$  0.0%

LGIP 6,520,010$      48.0%

13,582,010$    100.0%

Various Investment

Parameters
With

LGIP

Without

LGIP

WTD Avg Days to Mat 410 410

Wtd Avg Yield to Mat 0.98% 1.09%

Percent Callable 22.1% 42.5%

Wtd Avg Credit Rtng Aaa/AA+ Aaa/AA+


	CC Agenda 11282016
	CC 11142016 work session
	2016 October Minutes
	9-7-2016 minutes
	11-2-2016 minutes
	HAC Mins 11212016
	11282016 Liquor License Holiday Inn
	11282016 Staff Report Res 2045 Ranch and Home
	Resolution 2045
	Well Site 6
	Offer to Purchase Property
	Civil Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SP01


	Staff Report for Fee Waivers
	Fairground fee waiver Resolution
	11282016 HART Name Staff Report

